
 Public Board Meeting – In-person 
Wednesday, June 22, 2022, at 6:30 p.m 

 Location: FFCA Central Office 
110, 7000 Railway Street SE 

 
Invited Participants: All Directors, Central Office Executive Team  
Invited Attendees: All interested FFCA stakeholders  
Presenter: Sandi Serr, Lead of ASC’s 25th Anniversary Committee 
 
AGENDA 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 6:30 p.m. 
 
LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
We would like to begin by recognizing the Traditional Territory on which we are gathered today. FFCA would 
like to acknowledge and thank the diverse Indigenous peoples whose footsteps have marked this territory for 
centuries such as the Blackfoot Confederacy, the Tsuut’ina, the Stony Nakoda Nations, and the Métis Nation 
of Alberta, Region III. 
 
1. Review of Meeting Agenda ................................................................................................ Chair Wilson 
 
2. Approval of Consent Agenda ............................................................................................. Chair Wilson 

- Public Board Meeting Minutes of May 25, 2022 (attached); 
- Resignation of employee 10690, effective May 31, 2022. 

 
2022-06-22-1CA Approve Consent Agenda Draft Motion 
I MOVE that the Consent Agenda for June 22, 2022, be approved by the Board as 
presented. MOVED by Director ________ and seconded by Director ________. 

 
3. 25th Anniversary Recap ..................................................................................................... Sandi Serr 
 
4. Superintendent’s Report .................................................................................................... CEO Nippard 

 
5. Information Items 

5.1. Standing Item: Administrative Procedures Update ...................................................... COO Leinweber 
5.2. Standing Item: Strategic/Education Plan Update ................................................................. CEO Nippard 
5.3. Standing Item: NHS and SHS Update ................................................................................... CEO Nippard 
5.4. Standing Item: COVID Response ........................................................................................... COO Leinweber 

 
6. Discussion Items 

6.1. Review of 2022-23 Meeting Calendar (attached) ........................................................ Director Jin 
6.2. Approval of Locally Developed courses ...................................................................... CI Kool 
 

Course 
Code Course Name Credit 

Acquired or 
Developed 

Authorization 
Start Date 

Authorization 
End Date 

School 
Authority 

LDC1979 Musical Theatre 15-3 3 Acquired Sep. 1, 2022 Aug. 31, 2026 CCSD 

LDC1979 Musical Theatre 15-5 5 Acquired Sep. 1, 2022 Aug. 31, 2026 CCSD 

LDC2979 Musical Theatre 25-3 3 Acquired Sep. 1, 2022 Aug. 31, 2026 CCSD 

LDC2979 Musical Theatre 25-5 5 Acquired Sep. 1, 2022 Aug. 31, 2026 CCSD 

LDC3979 Musical Theatre 35-3 3 Acquired Sep. 1, 2022 Aug. 31, 2026 CCSD 

LDC3979 Musical Theatre 35-5 5 Acquired Sep. 1, 2022 Aug. 31, 2026 CCSD 

LDC1599 Learning Strategies (2018) 15-3 3 Acquired Sep. 1, 2022 Aug. 31, 2026 CCSD 



LDC1599 Learning Strategies (2018) 15-5 5 Acquired Sep. 1, 2022 Aug. 31, 2026 CCSD 

LDC2599 Learning Strategies (2018) 25-3 3 Acquired Sep. 1, 2022 Aug. 31, 2026 CCSD 

LDC2599 Learning Strategies (2018) 25-5 5 Acquired Sep. 1, 2022 Aug. 31, 2026 CCSD 

LDC3599 Learning Strategies (2018) 35-3 3 Acquired Sep. 1, 2022 Aug. 31, 2026 CCSD 

LDC3599 Learning Strategies (2018) 35-5 5 Acquired Sep. 1, 2022 Aug. 31, 2026 CCSD 

LDC1987 Technical Theatre 15-3 3 Acquired Sep. 1, 2022 Aug. 31, 2026 CBE 

LDC1987 Technical Theatre 15-5 5 Acquired Sep. 1, 2022 Aug. 31, 2026 CBE 

LDC2987 Technical Theatre 25-3 3 Acquired Sep. 1, 2022 Aug. 31, 2026 CBE 

LDC2987 Technical Theatre 25-5 5 Acquired Sep. 1, 2022 Aug. 31, 2026 CBE 

LDC3987 Technical Theatre 35-3 3 Acquired Sep. 1, 2022 Aug. 31, 2026 CBE 

LDC3987 Technical Theatre 35-5 5 Acquired Sep. 1, 2022 Aug. 31, 2026 CBE 

LWC 9 Leadership with Character 9 - Developed Sep. 1, 2022 Aug. 31, 2026 FFCA 

LCL 5-8 Life Choices and Leadership 5-8 - Developed Sep. 1, 2022 Aug. 31, 2026 FFCA 
 

2022-06-22-1RA Locally Developed Courses Draft Motion 
I MOVE that the acquired and developed middle and high school courses from the 
indicated school authorities for use at NHS, SHS, SMS, NMS campuses for the 
authorization period listed above be approved by the Board as presented.  
MOVED by __________ and seconded by ___________. 
 

6.3. Q3 Report (attached) .................................................................................................. CFO Estrada 
 
2022-06-22-2RA Q3 Report Draft Motion 
I MOVE that the Board receive for information the FFCA 2021-22 Third Quarter Financial 
Report as presented. MOVED by Director____ and seconded by Director ____. 
 

7. Committees/Liaison Reports 
7.1. Executive Committee ............................................................................................... Chair Wilson 
7.2. Communications and Community Relations (CCR) ................................................. Director Fisher 

 
7.2.1. CCR Committee’s Terms of Reference (TOR) 
2022-06-22-3RA CCR Committee’s TOR for approval Draft Motion 
I MOVE that the Board approve the CCR Committee’s Terms of Reference as 
presented. MOVED by Director____ and seconded by Director _____. 
 

7.3. Policy and Performance Review (PPR) ................................................................... Director Jin 
 
7.3.1. PPR Committee’s Terms of Reference (TOR) 
2022-06-22-4RA PPR Committee’s TOR for approval Draft Motion 
I MOVE that the Board approve the PPR Committee’s Terms of Reference as 
presented. MOVED by Director______ and seconded by Director _______. 
 
7.3.2. Policy 1 Foundational Statement 
2022-06-22-5RA Policy 1 Foundational Statement for approval Draft Motion 
I MOVE that Policy 1 Foundational Statement be approved with non-substantive 
changes as presented. MOVED by Director_____ and seconded by Director _____. 

  



7.3.3. Policy 19 Welcoming Caring Respectful Safe Inclusive 
2022-06-22-6RA Policy 19 for approval Draft Motion 
I MOVE that Policy 19 Welcoming Caring Respectful Safe Inclusive Learning and 
Working Environments be approved with non-substantive changes as presented. 
MOVED by Director______ and seconded by Director ________. 
 

7.4. Audit Committee ...................................................................................................... Director Qureshi 
 
7.4.1. Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference (TOR) 
2022-06-22-7RA Audit Committee’s TOR for approval Draft Motion 
I MOVE that the Board approve the Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference as 
presented. MOVED by Director____ and seconded by Director _____. 
 

7.5. TAAPCS Board Rep Report ..................................................................................... Vice-Chair Hill 
 

7.6. ASC Rep Report ...................................................................................................... Director Qureshi 
 

8. Director Highlights ............................................................................................................. Chair Wilson 
 

9. Open to Gallery.................................................................................................................. Chair Wilson 
 

10. Chairperson’s Remarks ..................................................................................................... Chair Wilson 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT: by 9:00 p.m. 
NEXT MEETING: September 28, 2022 (pending Board Meeting Calendar approval) 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:  



FoundAB Public Board Meeting 
Wednesday,May 25, 2022 
6:30-9:00 p.m. 
Online via Zoom 
 

Participants: Chair Wilson, Vice-chair Hill, Director Qureshi, Director Fisher, Director Spahl, Director Lakhani, 
Director Makwana, Director Saini, CEO Nippard, COO Leinweber, CFO Estrada, CI Justin Kool, CSS Bharati 
Singh, Jeff Cullen Director of IT, Josh Foat Director of Facilities 
Attendees: Anil Nayak, Candice Parno, Crystal Okasha, Denise Budgen, Jim Poirier, Joshua Symonds, Krista 
Lee, Meredith Poole, Rachel Bradley, RM, Shawna Drummond, Sue Boyd, Tanya  
Special Guest: Sandi Serr, 25th Anniversary Committee Lead 
 
MINUTES 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 6:32 p.m. 
 
LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
1. Review of Meeting Agenda 
 
2. Approval of Consent Agenda – Motion 

- Public Board Meeting Minutes of Mar 16, 2022 (attached);  
- FFCA CFO Appointment Letter (attached); 
- Letter to Minister McIver – MGA Amendments (attached). 

 
2022-05-25-1CA Approve Consent Agenda 
I move that the Consent Agenda for May 25, 2022, be approved by the Board as presented. 
MOVED by Director Makwana and seconded by Vice-Chair Hill. CARRIED. 
 

3. ASC Presentation: 25th Anniversary Event: Jun 4, 2022, from 10:00 to 4:00. Sold out event. Magazine 
created to give a high-level synopsis of our 25 years will be distributed at the event and will be made 
available electronically. 

 
4. Staff/Campus Reports 

4.1. SHS Fire Update: Successfully re-located SHS to MRU to finish the year off in person in order to have 
the least amount of disruption to learning and exams. All soft materials have extensive smoke damage. 
Items are currently being cleaned, where possible. Waiting on final news regarding the structural 
status of the building.  
 

5. Superintendent’s Report: Admin Leading Learning Meetings in campuses in April. NHS building completion 
on schedule despite supply chain issues, pre-ordering everything to keep it moving forward, estimated date 
of students in the building is Dec 1, 2023; Minister approved using some reserve dollars for solar panels 
and upgraded window glass; working on the land title transfer. Sod-turning ceremony for NHS on Apr 28, 
2022, with Ministers LaGrange and Panda in attendance as well as some grade 12 students and grade 10 
art students. Two shout-outs: Empathy Paw-ject on display at CPL, Grade 4 students learning about 
empathy by painting adoptable dogs spearheaded by Rebecca Caruthers. One-Act performances 
presented by Arlene Orchard and Chris Stockton were held at NHS and then in Red Deer at the Provincial 
One-Act Festival. 
 

6. Information Items 
6.1. Standing Item: Administrative Procedures Update – no updates 
6.2. Standing Item: Strategic/Education Plan Update – no updates 
6.3. Standing Item: High School Update – see Superintendent Report #5. 
6.4. Standing Item: COVID Response – no updates 

 



7. Discussion Items 
7.1. 2022-23 FFCA Budget (attached) 

 
2022-05-25-1RA 2022-23 FFCA Budget 
MOVED by Director Makwana and seconded by Director Lakhani that the 2022-23 FFCA Budget be 
approved as presented. CARRIED. 
 

7.2. Annual Education Plan (attached) 
 
2022-05-25-2RA Annual Education Plan 
MOVED by Vice-Chair Hill and seconded by Director Spahl that the Annual Education Plan be 
approved as presented. CARRIED. 
 

8. Committees/Liaison Reports 
8.1. Executive: has met one time. No decisions were taken. 
8.2. Communications and Community Relations (CCR): has met one time. Looked at what the next 

election could bring for FFCA. Excited about Board Crawl resuming in 22/23. Putting together a 
year-end message for parents. 

8.3. Policy and Performance Review (PPR): has met one time. They are looking at the committee’s role, 
skill set requirements, and what policies to review next. 

8.4. Audit: Looking at Terms of Reference and the committee’s priorities. Committee has three 
independent members (non-Directors). 

8.5. TAAPCS Board Rep Report: Executive Director position to be filled. Looking at a Government 
Relations firm as they consider the upcoming election. Spring General Meeting is on May 28, 2022. 

8.6. ASC Rep Report: update re: 25th Anniversary. 
 

9. Director Highlights 
 

10. Open to Gallery 
 

11. Chairperson’s Remarks 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT: 8:18 p.m. 
NEXT MEETING: Jun 22, 2022 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:  



Central Office 110 - 7000 Railway Street SE, Calgary, AB  T2H 3A8  Phone: 403-520-3206  Fax: 403-520-3209  www.ffca-calgary.com 
 

 

 

2022-23 
Public Board Meeting 

Schedule 
 

Public Board Meetings begin at 6:30 p.m. at the noted location/address below. 

Please check back prior to each meeting for updates to time or location. 

 

MEETING TYPE DATE LOCATION ADDRESS 

Public Board Meeting September 28, 2022 SHS TBD 

N O  O C T O B E R  M E E T I N G  

Public Board Meeting November 30, 2022 NMS 211 McKnight Blvd NE 

Annual General Meeting December 14, 2022 CO 110, 7000 Railway St SE 

Public & Organizational Meeting January 25, 2023 NEE 1140 Mayland Dr NE 

Public Board Meeting February 22, 2023 NHS 2116 MacKay Rd NW 

Public Board Meeting March 22, 2023 SEE 9711 Academy Dr SE 

N O  A P R I L  M E E T I N G  

Public Board Meeting May 24, 2023 NWE 719 44 Ave NW 

Public Board Meeting June 21, 2023 SMS 8710 Ancourt Rd SE 
 



6/13/22,12:08 PM Locally Developed Courses Online Management System

Home

Heip

Requests Reports

'—i IPCO'U

pt3 U3C CowSrs

$-£3 RHj'JSStS

^-'>za p^t6;«s

( tfrCJ AdapVAcqu'ie Request

6-£3 fteponded

AiiipVtatu'»i Ri'qunt

T.Z) Tta CB'SUV Riiiryn Catho'^ Eeparate Sthc-il Kvb'w

^-^R*n;MYl3,201:>

^'•'°y2t.2°13

^-QFet>nfirv6,201S

^-^ K-r/ S, 2016

E^-^Kay 4,2018

(^-Qteyl0,20;;

•aSLMrn'r4Strat^te5l5-3 i

Le^n'ng Strategy 15-S

a tasm'riti Streteg'fis 25-3

h-Q Lsam'r^Stnleg'ei^S-S

|-E3 leiin'ng Su-ate^'es 3S-3

h3 L^untng Stetag'o 3S.S

ha HusiciiiThWielS-3

}-Q MuKain^tfelS-S

[-Q t-'t&c^Hteatre 2S-3

hbi KustailThaitfeiS-S

ha Mu^cai Th^b-a iS-3

i~Q Kus'cd Tiwatfe 3S-S

^H3 '?e C^ga(Y Sdwol Dr.-ywi

^^ The Edmcfitcn Echool Dhfc'on

S-_i VK RoAy V^A Sdnwl KvSion

I—L3 KoWc$t3iws

Responded Acquire Course Request
-RtquiilDiUU

Ow.i Afttm!"M,

Wt iri l.yiun^ U E->r^tt ym Miukil Tbtaiit a:J Luffiuia Su

TiiuA Ytii,

imtulKwl

•Hli-iiO-iMX t-.l. S161

jiuilikwl^fTu-c^sify &MI

PIUit In ist tcav iflhit ii s-wW.s.

!;;^!.'r,,^'(1-

r-mifo](o»iB^i

iss. ill K-

Apptwe/pectine

Appimcd

AppTOTCd

Apprff.'cd

AtiptO.'cd

App(0i<cd

t^fstrwi

Appnh'ed

Appwed

Appmwt

Appwed

Apptwed

App«wd

_*dapl

Acqu'ie

Acqu'te

Acqu're

Acitu're

Acqu're

Auiu're

fVXfU'K

Adtu'Te

Adiu'ce

Acqu'ie

fequ'fe

Aap're

CourM! Name

Hu»iC3l Theatre 1S-5

Mustol Theatfe 25-S

Ku^i3t"Fte)tri!3S-S

Leiining Strategy 3S-3

Learning Strategte 35-S

Mu&3! Thaibe 25-3

Learning Etrates'es 15.5

MusXsl Tlwatie 15-3

Learning SOates'es 1S-3

Lesntlng Strateg'ea 15-S

HuAai Theatre 35-3

Layring Strateg'^-s 2S.3

Start Date

Hay 10, 20?;

Hay 10,2022

Hsy10,202;

Ha/ 10, 2B22

May 10, 2022

May 10,2022

May 10,202;

May 10, 202;

May 10,2022

May 10,2022

Hay 10, 202;

l-'.s/ tO, 203;

End Date

Aug.31.2026

Aug.31.2026

Aug.3f,202S

Aug. 31,2036

Aug.31.202G

Aug. 31.2026

Aug.3t.2026

Aug.31,2025

Aug.31,2026

Aug.31,2026

Aug. 31,2026

Aug. 31.2035

Cjlyiy Ci'h-i'n Si-lMd D^

^EllH-pUZOflh^itWH^

i;( Card R^-rttl&i, Ailnsi

giva pKml£sl<u fw y<l^Tj'jtjiiJ:itiva t^ ^^^{^UTC ttiAi ^'o'jni, f^tf ui^

iun>ilfciii^!;nusiL!:^(k3tlhir.il^u)-C'atSi.ilKS<:twlKilri(ti
a £T& DC< p^mJltAL

••< Aiiistuit, at CiTDLiT-btfrtMO^ci^iab^o u'itli q'A;ificvry N^^f.i

. yo-^ iiiariil u-.Eil Aa^uil 31. MIS.

KlcCiThI^td U l^t OTI^E^liir oFtfctf C •tt laj it^lHala fii



6/13/22,12:09 PM locally Developed Courses Oniine Management System

Homa

Help

Requests Ropons

^-1 IKOHS

j-'^ LDC COWHS

El-L-S Raiuests

^~';3 R^cef,<d

] E-'^i A<iEpt/A£C|U'/e RiKiUcS

&£l teStorBted

^S-Li Adspt/Acqu'K Request

y^ TTw Ce'gary Itomsn CathoBc S<(firata Schco! Kvls'on

Ep-^FebwEr/13,2013

1?-^ May 2i, 2011

^-©tFdniirY6,M15

^-Q May 5, 2016

t^-Q ?7-1,2018

B^ V-ei 10,202;

t-^| l.&an'ng Svateg'es 15-3

•ES Learrfig Strateg'ei 15-5

\-Q Lcsm'ng Strategy 25-3

i-Q team'ng Strat^cS 2S-S

1—^ Lfiam'ng Slrat^J^5 ^S-3

t"3 LezmTng St^tegr£S 35'S

hE'1 l-!us<^Th^UelS-3

•Q (•'U5^3iUK£tT6l5-S

1-g) Muskal -nwatfe 2S-3

j-a KuAal •ffieitra ;5-S

h3 KuHuST?WBtre3S-3

L^| Hustail Thaalre 3S-S

^.3 The C^Sir; Sdiod Ur.ts'un

fe-^Ribnrarv ^i MU

lp-^Apn!S,M13

ip-S^ March 9,2015

^-^KaYll,;01S

1^@| iiwanber 4,2015

^^A(snll2,2016

E|i-QApn124,2016

l|-QApfil;S,20!S

^-^ Apr! 25,2019

ip-<^ April 2S, 2019

ES-S^M^ 10, Z0» i

L^

i^K.3 The Edmonten Schod MvWon

&-'^ tte Fwky \fe« StiiTOl O'.V.son

'C3 ttoGfirafare

Responded Acquire Course Request
•HhiuatDiun'

Ot<^ AfclTAIl,

W^ ut l.^kicg Id mfiin; yo';r Ttduuul TttjUi Co'

TlurA Yfj,

iuilnKmi

4u.iiMmot.8i62

JT^tLH.fcp^1.^ ff<-4 <Al^±I>-.tWD

Pteii<[<lfficfaKra;iflhisispy»!i-

•Ittrrlhi.nr^Kds i tie iHli^l in fa nq.i-

Appfoya,/E>e<[!ne

Appro-ud

hpfivo-fed

Appwed

Appro'.'ed

Appwai

Appro'i'ed

Adapt
Acqu'ie

Acqu'ie

Acqu'fe

Acqu're

Acqu're

Acqu're

Course Maine

Tedtntoimeatte (2022) 25-S

TEchn'olTTiestte (2022) IS-3

Technto»i TT^atre (2022) 25-3

Techrfcai m-.stre (;022) 15-S

Tectin'ulTh^etre (2Q22) 35-3

Techn'al Theatre (iOUj 3S.S

Start Date

Ms/ia.tsn

Kay 10, 2022

May 10,2022

May 10, 2022

(•toy 10, 2022

May 10,2022

End Date

Aiig.31.20ZS

Aug.31,2026

Aug.3L302G

Aug,31,2026

Aug. 31,2028

Aug.31,2025

iftiutil foriMmis
^ic^ tM& <^?Jrt^ Yft
AW-itiRiHsionli

Kb-iol ^i^t:o^
snwp^rtoftbrs

^q'nru^ ±^< c^j

^rarjlfti Th;i?co'-^;^ar'c mi(ib'-< f^ri.ia uiTLttlt1^]r<i(i^'iIitia--^mhilt^c'j< ±^ CaJ^iry H^ud of Ed^ilj^i ^UE £\aluA^

,mIh^Ui^i;raj&lLng^!teCd^^B.?dofE^^ufeQui;Iff^.i1^iJulfc^oriii^^(ofl^i^^
r^tpwmnnL

Fiiiii: CKtul Bub Unto. A&iuiiiiii. dt, at t>lhmlcT^cbi-ib.<:3 wA ^f



Foundations for the Future Charter Academy
YTD and for the three months ending May 31, 2022

Annual 
Budget

September 
to May 

YTD
March - May

Q3 
Forecast to 
Aug 2022

YTD % of   
budget    Notes  

Income
AB Grant Revenue 33,555,414 25,555,052 8,525,811 35,335,564 76.16% Forecast includes SLS funding
Transportation Fees 2,138,100 1,712,016 539,231 1,939,400 80.07% Fees collected in advance, adjusted to match expenditures (88.3% of collected)
Resource Fees 543,020 520,336 231,003 578,200 95.82% Fees collected in advance, adjusted to match expenditures 
Other School Jurisdiction 400,000 484,719 178,645 556,000 121.18% Now includes STEM which was not budgeted
Campus Funds 1,359,635 1,013,236 251,500 1,359,635 74.52%
Other Revenue 140,825 353,582 (139,368)       1,750,000 251.08% Includes rebates, donations, kindergarten payments for those not covered, etc. 

Total Income 38,136,994 29,638,941 9,586,822 41,518,799 77.72%   we do not budgeted for

Expense
Salaries & Benefits 27,834,964 20,296,415 6,937,824 27,573,300 72.92% Some positions not filled (O&M, payroll, school development)
Inclusion 144,500 111,383 19,167 131,000 77.08%
Professional Development 70,074 24,836 6,260 40,000 35.44% Expected to do more PD then accomplished to date
Technology 566,794 346,335 72,303 1,671,800 61.10% Refresh of IT equipment begins in the summer months - includes special project
Transportation 3,760,735 3,116,565 925,174 3,675,000 82.87% Sept to May was 158 of 179 bus days = 88.3%
Facilities 1,985,359 1,681,713 481,530 1,900,000 84.71% Lots of projects are scheduled for the summer
Facilities - CMR Amortization 916,525 923,335 4,540 923,335 100.74% Offset revenue in AB ED Grant Revenue
Board 105,000 93,197 38,723 110,000 88.76% Sept to May is approx. 90% of school year - expense in line with school activities
Admin Building 144,817 141,832 59,877 185,000 97.94% Insurance and Utilities have gone up compared to budget
General & Admin 328,553 247,857 77,414 325,000 75.44%
Campus Funds 1,359,635 634,965 254,535 1,359,635 46.70% Field trip activity much lower than in previous years
Campus Expenditures 920,038 661,656 108,071 920,038 71.92%

Total Expense 38,136,994 28,280,088 8,985,417 38,814,108 74.15%

Surplus(Deficit) 0 1,358,853 601,405 2,704,691  

Instruction PO&M Sys Admin Transportation Total
* Reserve as at Aug. 31, 2021 328,673 1,001,301 614,040 (110,569) 1,833,445

2021-22 Budget 0 0 0 0 0

Expected reserve balance 328,673 1,001,301 614,040 (110,569) 1,833,445

Prepared by: Jhamily Estrada
June 8 2022



   
 

Revised 03-09-2022   
 

 

 
 
TERMS OF REFERENCE: COMMUNICATIONS & COMMUNITY RELATIONS (CCR) COMMITTEE  
 
I. Mandate  

• The mandate of the CCR Committee is to actively engage the board’s various stakeholders, 
including, but not limited to, the FFCA community.  

II. Composition  
• 3 Directors (minimum), Superintendent or designate. 

III. Meetings  
• The committee will meet a minimum of 3 times per year. 
• Notes on committee proceedings will be kept for all meetings and will be filed with the 

board secretary.  
• Reports on this committee will be presented during Public Board Meetings.  

IV. Duties and Responsibilities  
1. Annually review and revise a Communications and Community Relations plan for approval by 

the board and execute accordingly.  Elements of the Plan may also include Government 
Relations and Media Relations. 

2. Provide updates to the school community on the work of the Board. 
3. Provide opportunities for two-way dialogue with the FFCA community.  
4. Liaise with School Administration to Coordinate Board Involvement in School Events. 
5. Liaise with other committees to show support and ensure consistency of messaging 

i) ASC 
ii) TAAPCS 
iii) Charter School Advocacy Group 
iv) Fund Development Committee 

V. Accountability  
• The committee will report to the Board at public meetings, and whenever requested by the 

Board chair.  
 
 



 

PPR Terms of Reference  

Revised June 15, 2022 

 

  

TERMS OF REFERENCE: POLICY AND PERFORMANCE REVIEW COMMITTEE 

Revised June 15, 2022 

Committee Type: Standing 

I. Purpose 

The purpose of the Policy and Performance Review Committee (“the committee”) is to provide 

leadership and support for Board Governance with matters pertaining to: 

a. Society Bylaws 

b. Board Policies 

c. Board Structure & Operations 

d. Stakeholder Engagement, School Assurance, & Accountability 

 

II. Priorities 

a. Evolve the understanding and execution of board governance as a whole and clarify the 

work scope of the committee in leading and supporting board governance  

b. Engage board in professional development about Governance 

c. Support leadership succession planning including election engagement and participation  

 

III. Duties and Responsibilities 

With regard to board operations, policy and performance review matters, and subject to the 

authority delegated to the committee by the Board, the committee will:

a. Oversee and support the development, review and recommendations for revisions to 

the Society foundational principles, bylaws, and policies. 

b. Oversee and support director orientation, governance training and professional 

development including review and revision of the Directors’ Handbook and SharePoint 

site, as necessary. 

c. Oversee and support Board and Board leadership succession planning and recruitment. 

d. Oversee the board election process   

e. Oversee annual performance review of the Board. 

f. Oversee processes for the recruitment and hiring of the Superintendent as necessary. 

g. Oversee processes for the development and review of Superintendent contract terms as 

necessary. 

h. Oversee the annual performance review of the Superintendent. 

 

  



 

PPR Terms of Reference  

Revised June 15, 2022 

 

IV. Composition 

The committee will be comprised of no fewer than three (3) Board Directors.  Ex-officio 

members of this committee will include the Board Chair, the Superintendent (or designate), and 

any other interested Society members as deemed necessary by the committee. 

 

V. Meetings 

The committee will meet at least once prior to each public board meeting with additional 

meetings as required. 

 

VI. Accountability 

The committee will provide: 

a. written reports of all committee meetings to the Board using the report template as per 

Policy 7 Appendix 1, 

b. a verbal summary of its work during public board meetings as per Policy 8, General 

Requirement 7.6., and 

c. a written or verbal report of its work at such time as requested by the Board Chair. 

 

  

https://ffca.sharepoint.com/:b:/r/sites/FFCABoardofDirectors/Shared%20Documents/Committee%20Terms%20%26%20Templates/Committee%20Report%20Template%20-%20Fillable%20PDF.pdf?csf=1&web=1&e=71b1CW


 

PPR Terms of Reference  

Revised June 15, 2022 

 

Appendix – Key Deliverables / Lead Responsibilities 2022 

 Governance Clarification Development & Training (Shahid / Ketan) 

o Board Learning Plan 

o ‘Governance Handbook’ 

 Election / Succession (Sam / Ketan) 

o Review / Revise Elections Plan 

 Including Engagement Plan 

o Develop Board Executive Succession Plan 

 Policy Review Coordination (Randall) 

 



 
 

Policy 1 – FOUNDATIONAL STATEMENTS 
 

PREAMBLE 
 
This Public Charter School is operated by the Foundations for the Future Charter Academy Charter 
School Society, a body incorporated in Alberta under the Societies Act (March 21, 1996).  The 
official name of the school is "Foundations for the Future Charter Academy" (FFCA). The FFCA 
Board of Directors governs the school in accordance with the Alberta Education Act, the Societies 
Act, the FFCA Charter, the By-Laws of the Society, and Board Policy. 
 
FFCA’s current Charter was renewed under Section 7.1 of Alberta Regulation 212/2002 (Charter 
Schools Regulation) for a term of 15 years (until June 30, 2027).  
 
VISION 
 
Excellence in student achievement and character development through distinctive teaching and 
learning. 
 
MISSION 
 
To provide a safe and caring environment where academic excellence, character development, 
parental involvement and staff leadership are valued and fostered. 
 
GUIDING PRINCIPLES 
 
FFCA fosters strong, positive, respectful partnerships among students, staff, parents and 
community. These relationships are characterized by trust, integrity, openness and collaboration and 
exist to support learning for all stakeholders (Policy 9 Being Heard & Administrative Procedure AP-
G-801.1 Public Interest Disclosure (Whistleblower Protection)). FFCA encourages leadership 
among all stakeholders through shared decision-making. 

FFCA strives for excellence in: 

 academic development and independent learning. 

 personal and character development. 

 the development of outstanding staff. 
 

FFCA creates a caring and optimal learning environment for students by: 

 setting clearly defined learning standards. 

 building students’ belief in their ability to learn. 

 developing confidence through competence. 

 fostering positive thinking and providing encouragement. 

 optimizing learning time and student engagement. 

 tailoring class size and composition to reflect the learning needs of students. 
 

FFCA is “one school” on multiple campuses. We are coherent in our vision and unified in our 
practices, including the following: 

 a common approach to instruction and classroom management. 



 common core character virtues K-12 (respect, responsibility, integrity, self-discipline, 
compassion). 

 cross-campus grade level and subject area collaboration. 

 formal orientation, coaching and mentoring for teachers. 

 use of subject specialists (e.g. Art, PE, Music, Spanish). 

 parental commitment to a high level of involvement. 

 wearing of student uniforms. 
 

FFCA is purposeful and strategic in the selection and utilization of teaching methods and 
resources, including the following: 

 direct instruction (explicit learning targets, continuous formative assessment, and sequential 
mastery learning). 

 inquiry and cooperative learning. 

 the infusion of creative and critical thinking. 

 early literacy development (explicit phonics). 

 integration of instructional technologies. 

 homework that promotes the attainment of student learning targets. 
 
OUR BRAND 
 
Our wordmark and the name “Foundations for the Future Charter Academy” were trademarked 
on August 31, 2016, followed by our logo and acronym (“FFCA”) as of September 6, 2017; they 
are therefore protected by law under Canada’s Trademarks Act* (Appendix). Only FFCA is 
permitted to use (or give permission to use) our name, wordmark, acronym and logo. 

 
The FFCA Logo: 

As the name of FFCA implies, the primary focus of the organization is the future. This is 
represented in the logo by the black road leading into the distance. The burgundy section 
at the top of the logo represents FFCA students’ futures and all they will achieve. The 
green section at the bottom represents the strong learning foundation FFCA builds within 
students through its distinctive approach to teaching and learning. 
 

 

The FFCA logo has three distinctive elements: 
 the sky, road and earth 
 the border 
 type font (Eurostile) 
 
 

The FFCA Wordmark: 
In addition to the Logo meaning above, the wordmark has been specifically designed to 
communicate the full name of Foundations for the Future Charter Academy to external 
audiences, and to build awareness of FFCA within the larger community. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Original Approval Date: March 16, 2016 
Revision Dates: Recommended for approval with non-substantive changes June 22, 2022; 

May 13, 2020 
References: Education Act Preamble, Sections 3, 7, 18, 26, 27, 53, 67, 222 
 FFCA Charter Document 2012-2027 
 *Register of Trademarks Dossiers #923833, 923834, 923835 & 923836 

 

 



  

Policy 1, Appendix A: Being Heard (ELIMINATED REDUNDANCY WITH POLICY 9) 

 
 
 
 

Policy 1, Appendix B: Public Interest Disclosure (Whistleblower Protection) 
(ELIMINATED REDUNDANCY WITH AP-G-801.1 

  



 

Policy 1, Appendix C: Our Brand Trademarks 

 



 



 



 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Policy 19 – WELCOMING, CARING, RESPECTFUL, SAFE AND 
INCLUSIVE LEARNING AND WORKING ENVIRONMENTS 

 
Preamble  
 
Inclusion and a sense of belonging for all staff and students stems from creating an environment 
in which we focus on all the ways in which everyone has an equal right to be a welcomed, 
respected and cared for member of the Foundations for the Future Charter Academy (FFCA) 
staff or student body.  
 

In keeping with the focus on character and leadership at Foundations for the Future Charter 
Academy (FFCA), the Charter Board (the “Board”) is committed to providing a welcoming, 
caring, respectful, safe and inclusive learning and working environment that respects diversity 
and fosters a sense of belonging. Each student and staff member within FFCA has the right to 
learn and work in campuses that promote qualities of opportunity, dignity, and respect.  
 

The Board is further obligated to protect all students from harassment, discrimination and 
violence during FFCA's campus-related activities whether on campus or off. All those involved 
with FFCA, including Directordirectors, employees, students, parents, volunteers, contractors 
and visitors, must share in the responsibility for eliminating bullying, discrimination, harassment, 
and violence. The Board prohibits bullying, harassment, discriminatory, and violent behaviours 
and expects allegations of such behaviours to be investigated in a timely and respectful manner. 
The Board expects complainants to follow Policy 09 the Being Heard process and will make 
every effort to protect individual’s identities. 
 

FFCA administration and staff will respond to all situations affecting the safety of students and/or 
staff members to ensure that every threat receives a reasoned and timely response in 
accordance with the FFCA Critical Response Manual. 
 

One key outcome of our vision for FFCA is that all students will possess a strong connection to 
their campuses as welcoming, caring, respectful, safe and inclusive places focused on their 
individualized success.  
 

Specifically  

 

1. The Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure welcoming, caring, respectful, safe and 
inclusive learning environments for all students. It recognizes the importance of students’ 
emotional, social, intellectual and physical wellness to their success in school and expects 
students to adhere to the Student Code of Conduct. 

2. The Board expects all Directordirectors, employees, students, parents, volunteers, visitors, 
and contractors to embrace and support this policy. This policy covers behaviour not only at 
all campuses, but also at any campus-related functions. This applies whether contact is 
face-to-face, by phone, fax, e-mail, online (Internet or Intranet), or by any other means of 



 

 

communication. Threatening, harassing, intimidating, assaulting or bullying, in any way, any 
person within the FFCA community, including aggressive behaviours by any person within 
the FFCA community, is prohibited. Bullying is defined in the Education Act (Section 1.1 
(d.).  

3. The Board encourages reporting to a member of school staff or administration all incidents 
of threats, harassment, intimidation, assault, violent behaviour and/or bullying, regardless of 
the identity of the alleged harasser or offender in accordance with Policy 09 Being Heard or 
AP-G-801.1 Public Interest Disclosure (Whistleblower).  

4. The Board supports the establishment of student organizations and student-led activities 
that promote equality and non-discrimination, including but not limited to gay-straight 
alliances, queer-straight alliances, diversity clubs, anti-racism clubs and anti-bullying clubs.  

 

 

Original Approval Date: February 17, 2016 
Revision Dates: Recommended for approval with non-substantive changes June 22, 2022; 

May 12, 2021 
References: Education Act Sections 11, 27, 31, 33, 35, 36, 37, 53, 58, 196, 197, 213, and 222 
  Alberta Human Rights Act 

  Occupational Health and Safety Act 

  Canadian Charter of Rights and Freedoms 

  Criminal Code 

  Preamble, Youth Criminal Justice Act (S.C 2002, c. 1) 

  Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act 

  Practice Review of Teachers and Teacher Leaders Regulations 

  Policy 9 Being Heard 

 

Approved: February 17, 2016 

Revision: May 12, 2021 

 

Legal Reference: Section 11, 27, 31, 33, 35, 36, 37, 53, 58, 196, 197, 213, and 222 Education Act  

Alberta Human Rights Act  

Occupational Health and Safety Act  

Canadian Charter of Rights and Freedoms  

Criminal Code 

Preamble, Youth Criminal Justice Act (S.C 2002, c. 1) 

Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act 

Practice Review of Teachers and Teacher Leaders Regulations 

Policy 1 Appendix 1: Being Heard 

  



 

 

Appendix A 
 

STUDENT CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
 

Consistent with the emphasis on Character Education at Foundations for the Future Charter 
Academy (FFCA), the Charter Board (the “Board”) endorses a set of desirable personal and 
interpersonal character traits that incorporate universal values common to all religions and 
ethnic-cultural groups, including respect, integrity, empathy, compassion, independence, 
cooperation, responsibility and self-control. 

 
Students are expected to learn, practice, develop and model such personal and interpersonal 

character traits and to contribute to the development of welcoming, caring, respectful, safe 
and inclusive learning environments. FFCA is obligated to protect all students and staff from 
bullying, harassment, discrimination, and violence during school-related activities.  Bullying 
is defined as “repeated and hostile or demeaning behaviour by an individual in the school 
community where the behaviour is intended to cause harm, fear or distress to one or more 
other individuals in the school community, including psychological harm or harm to an 
individual’s reputation” Education Act (Section 1.1 (d). Students are further expected to 
respect diversity and refrain from demonstrating any form of discrimination as set out in the 
Alberta Human Rights Act. Students are to foster a sense of belonging amongst all students.  

 
Within the aforementioned context, students are expected to pursue academic and cultural 

studies to maximize their individual potential in becoming self-reliant, responsive and 
contributing members of society. 

 
Specifically 

1. In displaying acceptable behaviour, students are expected to: 

1.1 Use their abilities and talents to gain maximum learning benefits from their school 
experiences; 

1.2 Contribute to a climate of mutual trust and respect conducive to effective learning, 
personal development, and social living; 

1.3 Co-operate fully with everyone authorized by FFCA to provide education programs 
and other services; 

1.4 Comply with all applicable federal, provincial and municipal laws, and the rules of 
FFCA and its campuses; 

1.5 Account to their teachers for their conduct; 

1.6 Attend at their campus regularly and punctually; 

1.7 Use non-violent means to resolve conflict; 

1.8 Treat all other students and staff with dignity, respect and fairness at all times; 

1.9 Contribute to a learning environment that is free from physical, emotional, and social 
abuse; 

1.10 Take appropriate measures to help those in need; and 

1.11 Demonstrate honesty and integrity. 



 

 

2. Students are accountable for demonstrating respect for: 

2.1 Authority; 

2.2 Others and their property; 

2.3 School property, equipment and textbooks; and 

2.4 Differences in ethnicity, race, religion, gender and sexual orientation. 

3. Students are prohibited from engaging in unacceptable behaviour, whether it occurs within 
the campus building, during school or school-related trips or activities, or by electronic 
means. 

Examples of such behaviours include, but are not limited to: 

3.1 Use, possession of, sale, distribution of or active contact with, a weapon on a 
student’s person, in a student's locker or desk, on FFCA property, or in a vehicle on 
FFCA property used by a student or occupied by a student as a passenger; 

3.2 Threats; 

3.3 Conduct which endangers others; 

3.4 Encouraging conduct which endangers or may endanger others; 

3.5 Encouraging unacceptable conduct; 

3.6 Use or display of improper, obscene or abusive language; 

3.7 Distribution or display of offensive messages or pictures; 

3.8 Theft, including identity theft; 

3.9 Intimidation and/or assault; 

3.10 Willful damage FFCA or others’ property;  

3.11 Use, possession of, distribution of, or active contact with, or collection of money for 
illicit drugs, cannabis, alcohol, or inhalants in a campus, on FFCA property or in the 
context of any campus-related activity; 

3.12 Attending at a campus or any campus-related activity under the influence of illicit 
drugs, cannabis, alcohol or inhalants; 

3.13 Personal or sexual harassment; 

3.14 Hazing, initiation activities; the formation or the operation of sororities, fraternities, 
gangs and secret organizations; 

3.15 Extortion; 

3.16 Disruptive behaviour, willful disobedience or defiance of authority; 

3.17 Interfering with the orderly conduct of classes or the campus; 

3.18 Tampering with fire alarms and safety equipment; 

3.19 Criminal activity;  

3.20 Workplace violence; 

3.21 Bullying, including cyber-bullying; and retribution against any person who has 
intervened to prevent or report bullying or any other incident or safety concern; and 

3.22 Inappropriate information technology/social media use. 

4. Unacceptable student behaviour: 
4.1 May be grounds for disciplinary action; and 

4.2 Provides an opportunity for critical learning in the areas of: 



 

 

4.2.1. Personal accountability and responsibility; 

4.2.2. The development of empathy; 

4.2.3. Conflict resolution; 

4.2.4. Communication; and 

4.2.5. Social skills development. 

5. When responding to unacceptable student behaviour, the following are to be considered: 

5.1 The effect of the student's behaviour upon other students, the staff, the campus, 
FFCA, and the community; 

5.2 The nature of the action or incident that calls for disciplinary or alternative measures; 

5.3 The student’s previous conduct and previous interventions; 

5.4 The student’s age, maturity and abilities; 

5.5 The impact of proposed action on the student's future behaviour; 

5.6 The student’s learning needs; and 

5.7 Any other information considered appropriate or relevant. 

6. The consequences of unacceptable behaviour may be: 

6.1 Assignment of a student whose behaviour is unacceptable, disruptive or destructive 
to an alternate supervised location; 

6.2 Short term removal of privileges; 

6.3 Detention; 

6.4 Use of reasonable force as required by way of correction to restrain a student from 
carrying out a violent or destructive act that could harm the student or others; 

6.5 Alternative interventions such as community conferencing or other forms of 
restorative justice; 

6.6 Corrective student transfer; 

6.7 Suspension; and 

6.8 Recommendation for expulsion. 

7. Students will contribute, to the greatest extent possible, to a learning environment that is 
well-ordered, peaceful, safe, non-threatening, and conducive to learning and optimal growth. 

 

  



 

 

Appendix B 
 

STANDARDS OF CONDUCT – ALL STAFF 
 
 
Statutory and Professional Expectations – All employees are expected to meet all conduct 

expectations established in relevant statutes such as the Practice Review of Teachers and 
Teacher Leaders Regulation, as well as any conduct requirements specific to their position 
as identified by their relevant professional bodies (e.g. College of Alberta Psychologists, 
Alberta College of Social Workers, etc.).  

 
Professional Relationships with Students & Families – While staff are expected to develop caring 

relationships with the students and/or families with whom they work, these relationships are 
to be maintained at a professional level and personal social relationships are not to be 
pursued.  In situations in which prior personal social relationships with students and/or 
families exist, employees are expected to minimize actions which could create real or 
perceived inequities in the treatment of students and/or families.  Employees may accept 
small gifts of acknowledgement and appreciation ($75 max.) from students and/or families, 
but these gifts should not be of such significance that they may be interpreted as payment for 
services, or create the potential for real or perceived inequities in the treatment of students 
and/or families.  

 
Collegial Collaboration and Conflict – FFCA staff are expected to work collaboratively with their 

colleagues to serve the best interests of FFCA.  Professional disagreements are an expected 
element of effective collaboration, however conflicts should not have a detrimental effect on 
professional performance and collaboration.  All employees are expected to follow all FFCA 
policies and procedures relating to stakeholder communication (e.g. AP-B-401.1 Being 
Heard Policy 9 Being Heard). Employees will not:  

a. undermine the confidence of co-workers, students, or parents in other colleagues,  
b. criticize the competence/damage the reputation of a colleague. Comments/ criticisms 

are expected to be made in confidence to an appropriate school official (after 
informing the colleague of that criticism) OR to the appropriate regulatory body 
according to their procedures.  

 
Professional Representation – FFCA employees are agents of FFCA and are expected to 

positively represent FFCA both within and outside the organization. Any concerns that the 
employee has about FFCA, its Board, administration or the operations of the organization 
are to be expressed through appropriate channels in an appropriate manner. AP-B-401.1 
Being Heard Policy 9 Being Heard provides direction in this regard.  

 
Confidentiality – Information that belongs to or is used by FFCA, and is not publically known, will 

be treated as confidential by staff. Knowledge concerning staff, students and their families 
that is learned through FFCA employment is strictly confidential.   

 
Proprietary Resources – FFCA facilities, materials, equipment or intellectual property may not be 

used by FFCA staff for any purpose unrelated to FFCA business without proper consent of 
the Superintendent or designate.  

 

http://www.qp.alberta.ca/documents/Regs/2019_092.pdf
http://www.qp.alberta.ca/documents/Regs/2019_092.pdf
https://www.ffca-calgary.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=17074466
https://www.ffca-calgary.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=17074466


 

 

Conflict of Interest – FFCA staff have a duty to report to their immediate supervisor any potential 
conflict of interest which is defined as “a conflict between the public and private interests of 
somebody in an official position, or conflicts between a number of public positions.”  

 
Attendance and Punctuality – FFCA staff are expected to punctually report to work as scheduled 

by their supervising administrator.  
 
Dress & Deportment - FFCA staff are expected to dress and act in a professional manner while 

at work and when representing the school in the community.  Staff dress and deportment 
should blend practicality and comfort with a level of professionalism that conveys importance 
of our mission and the primacy of learning and teaching within our schools.  

 
Impairment / Substance Possession and/or Use – No employee is permitted to enter or remain 

on school property while their ability to work is affected by use of any substance, including 
prescription medications, alcohol, cannabis, or illegal substances.  Staff are required to notify 
their supervisor of any medication they are taking, including any medical cannabis, which 
could impair their work performance. The possession or use of alcohol, cannabis or illegal 
substances, or use of potentially impairing medications on the job without prior authorization 
is prohibited.  

 
Criminal Acts – Employees are required to disclose involvement in any matter that may arise in 

relation to their ability to maintain a clear Criminal Record status.  
 
NOTE: Supervisors are responsible for the administration of these expectations.  Chronic or 
severe failure to act in accordance with these standards may result in disciplinary action 
including formal reprimand, suspension, or termination of employment.  
 
 
Approved: February 17, 2016 

 
Legal Reference: Section 11, 27, 31, 33, 35, 36, 37, 53, 58, 196, 197, 213, and 222 Education Act 

Alberta Human Rights Act  

Occupational Health and Safety Act  

Canadian Charter of Rights and Freedoms  

Criminal Code 

Preamble, Youth Criminal Justice Act (S.C 2002, c. 1) 

Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act 

Practice Review of Teachers and Teacher Leaders Regulations 



 

TERMS OF REFERENCE: AUDIT COMMITTEE 

To be presented to the Board at on June 22, 2022, for acceptance.  

A. Establishment of Committee 

The Audit Committee (Committee) is a standing committee of the board of directors (Board) of the 
Foundations of Future Charter Academy (FFCA).  The chair of the Committee is the FFCA Board 
Treasurer. 

B. Purpose 

The purpose of the Committee is to assist and advise the Board with respect to the FFCA’s 
annual financial reporting processes, in doing so, aid the Board in fulfilling its governance 
responsibilities.  The role of the Committee is that of oversight, not management, and in such 
capacity is to consider, monitor, oversee and make recommendations to the Board concerning 
various matters including: 

(a) the integrity of the FFCA’s annual financial statements 

(b) the adequacy and effectiveness of the FFCA’s systems of internal controls, including 
controls over financial reporting and financial reporting processes generally; 

(c) communications between the Board, the FFCA’s external auditor, and management of 
the FFCA  

C. Responsibilities and Duties 

The Committee1 will: 
1. Function in accordance with the Bylaws of the FFCA Charter School Article IX - 

Committees Established by the Board 
2. Meet at least 3 times a year 
3. Recommend external auditors to the Board2 
4. Confirm the independence of the auditors 
5. Review the audit plan 
6. Review conflicts of interest for non-financial audit services provided by the external auditor 
7. Review internal financial controls and application of the financial controls 
8. Review the risk register for identification of risks and implementation of risk mitigation 

plans 
9. Review Administration Procedures for reporting and ensure compliance with applicable 

rules and regulations 
10. Review Board Director’s expense summary at least annually to ensure compliance with 

applicable laws and report any potential non-compliance to the Board 
11. Seek any information it requires from the Superintendent - who is directed to cooperate 

with the Committee's request 
12. Review the annual financial statements and report to the Board3  
13. Recommend amendments to these terms of reference to the Board as required. 

                                                           
1 Education Act Statues of Alberta 2012 Chapter E-0.3 s27(1)(f) and s142  
2 Education Act Statues of Alberta 2012 Chapter E-O.3 s142(1)(a)  
3 Education Act Statues of Alberta 2012 Chapter E-O.3 s142(1)(b) 



D. Nomination Process: 
Nomination to the committee is by way of majority support of the Board of Directors upon a review 
of the applicant pool.  In the event of a tie, the Superintendent will decide on the final candidate. 
 
All successful nominees will serve for a two-year term, after which time they can be re-nominated 
for additional terms. 
 
Additional Information: 

- Committee members are expected to sign confidentiality agreements 
- Honoraria threshold for materiality to be set at the legislated minimum wage in the Province 

of Alberta  
- At least one Committee member must be deemed financially literate.  

o An individual is financially literate if he or she can read and understand a set of 
financial statements that present a breadth and level of complexity of accounting 
issues that are generally comparable to the breadth and complexity of the issues 
that can reasonably be expected to be raised by the issuer’s financial statements. 

 
Committee Membership:  

Audit Committee shall comprise of at least five members4 and shall include two members who are 
not Board of Directors with at least one financial literate member.   

                                                           
4 Education Act Statues of Alberta 2012 Chapter E-O.3 s142(2)  


	2022-06-22 Board Meeting Agenda and Info Package.pdf
	1  2022-06-22 Public Board Meeting Agenda
	2  2022-05-25 Public Board Meeting Minutes FOR APPROVAL
	4  AE Acquired Courses Approval
	5  2022 Q3 Budget vs Actual v2
	6  Communications & Community Relations (CCR) Committee Terms of Reference 2022-03-08
	I. Mandate
	 The mandate of the CCR Committee is to actively engage the board’s various stakeholders, including, but not limited to, the FFCA community.

	II. Composition
	 3 Directors (minimum), Superintendent or designate.

	III. Meetings
	 The committee will meet a minimum of 3 times per year.
	 Notes on committee proceedings will be kept for all meetings and will be filed with the board secretary.
	 Reports on this committee will be presented during Public Board Meetings.

	IV. Duties and Responsibilities
	1. Annually review and revise a Communications and Community Relations plan for approval by the board and execute accordingly.  Elements of the Plan may also include Government Relations and Media Relations.
	2. Provide updates to the school community on the work of the Board.
	3. Provide opportunities for two-way dialogue with the FFCA community.
	4. Liaise with School Administration to Coordinate Board Involvement in School Events.

	V. Accountability
	 The committee will report to the Board at public meetings, and whenever requested by the Board chair.


	7  Policy and Performance Committee (PPR) Terms of Reference - 2022-06-15 REVISION
	8  Policy 01 Foundational Statements - June 22 2022 Non-substantive Changes
	9  Policy 19 Welcoming Caring Respectful Safe Inclusive - June 22 2022 Revisions

	10  FFCA Audit Committee Terms of Reference - 2022
	A. Establishment of Committee
	B. Purpose
	(a) the integrity of the FFCA’s annual financial statements
	(b) the adequacy and effectiveness of the FFCA’s systems of internal controls, including controls over financial reporting and financial reporting processes generally;
	(c) communications between the Board, the FFCA’s external auditor, and management of the FFCA

	C. Responsibilities and Duties
	D. Nomination Process:


